
Meeting of:  Integrated Commissioning Board
Date: Tuesday, 27th November, 2018
Time: 3.30 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  MINUTES 4 - 8

For the Committee to agree as a correct record, the Minutes of the meeting 
held on the 30th October 2018.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to be 
excluded from the meeting.

5.  TRANSFORMATION POSITION STATEMENT 

The Committee will receive a presentation on the Transformation Position 
Statement. (45 Minutes)

6.  INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD - TERMS OF REFERENCE 9 - 14

Members are requested to agree the Terms of Reference for the Integrated 
Commissioning Board. (5 Minutes)

7.  CLINICAL PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY PANEL (CPAP) - TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 

15 - 22

For the Committee to note the Terms of Reference of the Clinical 

Public Document Pack



Professional Advisory Panel. (5 Minutes)

8.  OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK 23 - 28

For the Committee to receive a report on the Outcomes Framework.          
(10 Minutes)

9.  FAMILY SERVICE MODEL 

Members will receive a verbal update on the Family Service Model.            
(10 Minutes)

10.  POSTURE AND MOBILITY 29 - 32

The Committee will consider the proposed changes to service specification 
for the Posture and Mobility Centre. (10 Minutes)

11.  PERFORMANCE REPORT - FOR INFORMATION 33 - 39

The Committee will receive the ICB performance report.

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining part of 
the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 
on the grounds that discussions may involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in 
publishing the information. 

13.  SAVINGS PROPOSALS 40 - 114

The Integrated Commissioning Board are asked to consider the savings 
proposals. (30 Minutes)

Integrated Commissioning Board Members
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Allen Brett Graham Burgess (Chair)
Denise Dawson Dr Chris Duffy
Councillor Kieran Heakin Paul Hinnigan
Councillor Sara Rowbotham

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison
Governance and Committees, Number One Riverside, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924829; e-mail: john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 30th October 2018

PRESENT: G. Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG: Dr B. Alam, 
D. Dawson, P. Hinnigan; RBC: Councillor A. Brett, Councillor K. Heakin and 
Councillor S. Rowbotham.

OFFICERS: HMR CCG: K. Hurley (Director of Operations and Executive 
Nurse), S. Croasdale (Strategic Commissioning Director); HMR CCG/RBC: 
K. Kenton (Associate Director – Children’s Services); RBC: N. Thornton 
(Director of Resources), G. Hopper (Director of Children’s Services), 
V. Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer), W. Meston (Deputy Director of Public 
Health) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).  

Also in Attendance: Dr A. York (Clinical and Professional Advisory Panel) 
and J. Newton (HMR CCG).   

APOLOGIES
55 Apologies for absence were received from Dr C. Duffy (HMR CCG), 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed (RBC); S. Rumbelow, S. McIvor (RBC/HMR CCG), 
S Evans, H. Chapman (HMR CCG), A. Fallon and D. Wilcock (RBC).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
56 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
57 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered the minutes of the 
last meeting held 25th September 2018 and the Actions list that was appended 
thereto.

The Chair advised that Mr. Paul Hinnigan was due to resign his membership 
of HMR CCG’s governing body in the near future therefore this was to be the 
last meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board that he would attend. He 
was to be replaced by Ms. Joanne Newton who was attending this meeting as 
an observer. 
  
 Resolved:

1. The minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board 
held 25th September 2018 be approved as ac correct record.

2. The Actions List appended to the minutes be noted.
3. The best wishes of the Board be conveyed to Mr. Hinnigan.

TERMS OF REFERENCE (INCLUDING SUB-GROUPS)
58 The Integrated Commissioning Board received the terms of reference 
for the Board’s Finance, Performance and Risk Sub Group and the terms of 
reference for the HMR CCG’s Quality and Safeguarding Committee/Group, for 
information.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Revised Terms of Reference for the Integrated Commissioning Board would 
be submitted to a future meeting of the Board for approval. It had been 
suggested that a representative of the Rochdale Borough HealthWatch group 
be co-opted onto the Board as a non-voting member

Resolved:
1. The terms of reference for the Board’s Finance, Performance and Risk 

Sub Group and the terms of reference for the HMR CCG’s Quality and 
Safeguarding Committee/Group be noted.

2. The Board recommends that a representative of Rochdale Borough 
HealthWatch group be co-opted onto the Board as a non-voting 
member.

3. The Board notes that a report detailing revised Terms of Reference for 
the Integrated Commissioning Board will be submitted to a future 
meeting of the Board.  

TRANSFORMATION HIGHLIGHTS REPORT
59 The Board considered a report of the Transformation Programme 
Director that updated members on the following matters:

a) Programme delivery – describing transformation progress
b) Finance – an update on finance in relation to transformation issues
c) Local Care Organisation – update on progress
d) Performance – progress made towards the DSCRO data flow process 

and Transformation Performance Indicators
e) Communication and Engagement

The Board considered a number of risks that had been raised at previous 
meetings, including the ability of the transformation programme to deliver the 
levels of deflections and benefits required. Key operational risks included 
recruiting to Clinical Pharmacist posts, TPI’s/Outcomes tracking and Planned 
Care. The planned care theme had a deflection value of £10 million over a 
four year period with £2.5 million deliverable in 2018/19. The pain intervention, 
contained in the theme, was the only one that was currently delivering 
deflections.

A Member referred to an instance of a patient, that he was aware of, who had 
to be conveyed to hospital via a taxi due to the inordinate length of time spent 
waiting for an ambulance, in this regard it was asked if North West Ambulance 
Service were delivering the required data through their existing datasets (as 
referenced in the Board’ report)? It was agreed that the issue raised by the 
Member would be investigated further.

The Chair asked if the Board could make positive interventions to assist with 
any problems relating to Planned Care?

Resolved:
1. That the report be noted;

Page 4



2. The issue raised by the Member, referred to above, of a patient being 
conveyed to hospital via a taxi service, be referred to HMR CCG to 
investigate;

3. Future reports to the Integrated Commissioning Board include, where 
appropriate, details of where the Board can make crucial differences to 
include the provision of service.

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND BUDGET 
MONITORING REPORT
60 The Chief Finance Officer reported that at its meeting held 29th May 
2018 the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) had agreed revised 2018/19 
budgets for the Better Care Fund (BCF). The submitted report updated the 
Board with the quarter 2 (September period end) budget monitoring for the 
BCF for the financial year 2018/19. 

The ICB was asked to agree a further capital budget realignment (£15k) to the 
£40,000 that had been agreed at Quarter 1 for the for the Mental Health Safe 
Haven transformation project now that updated costs had been received.  The 
ICB subsequently agreed at its meeting on 31st July 2018 that any unspent 
capital budget in 2018/19 would be carried over into 2019/20 against existing 
or new schemes that are to be identified.

In addition the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care announced on 
2nd October 2018, that an extra £240 million of funding would be made 
available to Councils to pay for Social Care packages for winter 2018/19. The 
indication was that the funding will be allocated to Councils based on the adult 
care relative needs formula which would result in the Council receiving £1.1 
million of additional one-off funding in 2018/19.

Alternatives considered: It is a requirement of the NHS England guidance to 
produce a budget for 2018/19 which the ICB approved at its May 2018 
meeting. The submitted report updated the monitoring against the 2018/19 
budget which was a requirement of the Section 75 Agreement.

Resolved:
1. The monitoring information at Quarter 2 (September period end) 

2018/19, be noted.
2. The ICB notes that there are contingencies being held for the revenue 

and capital budgets not yet allocated in 2018/19.
3. The ICB gives approval to a capital budget realignment from the capital 

contingency to the Mental Health Safe Haven project (as detailed in the 
submitted report), in the sum of £15,000.

4. The additional funding announced by the Secretary of State for Health 
and Social Care on the 2nd October 2018, be noted.

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POOLED BUDGET MONITORING REPORT - 
PERIOD 6 (SEPTEMBER)  2018/19
61 The Integrated Commissioning Board received a report that provided 
an update on the financial position of the pooled budget for the financial year 
2018/19 at period 6 (30th September 2018). The pooled budget excluded the 

Page 5



Better Care Fund (BCF) and Greater Manchester Transformation funding 
which would be reported separately to the Board during 2018/19.The pooled 
budget had been amended to take into account the savings reported in 
previous reports to the Board, the gap at period 6 on the pooled budget was 
reported to be £2.7 million which was the same as the position reported at 
period 5 in the previous monitoring report to the Board on 25th September 
2018. 

The Integrated Commissioning Board was advised that during 2018/19 any 
Local Authority provider service variations, being noted in this report were for 
information only as it will be for the Council to identify mitigating actions. 
However in future financial years funding of such pressures would be subject 
to the development of the pooled fund commissioning arrangements. 

The CCG was showing a pressure of £900,000 at period 6 (30th September 
2018). The CCG pressure was shown in the pool but the CCG had contributed 
an additional amount to the pool from reserves to offset this pressure. The 
pressure related to ‘Acute’ contracts (£600,000) and Mental Health expensive 
placements (£300,000). This was £200,000 more than reported at period 4.

In considering the report Members sought additional assurances that the 
savings already agreed, such as for prescribing services, were on course to 
be delivered. The Board asked that any savings that were agreed for 
2019/2020, which could be delivered early should be used to off-set the 
reported £2.7 million funding gap.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

FUTURE MODEL FOR LCO AND FAMILY SERVICES MODEL
62 The Director of Resources verbally updated the meeting on progress 
towards LCO Gateway 3 and undertook to keep the Board updated at future 
meetings. A report on the Family Services Model (for Children’s Services) was 
due to be submitted to the Board’s next meeting on 27th November 2018.

Resolved:
That the update be noted. 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
63 Resolved:
The Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.
 
Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be 
the disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 6



2019/20 - 2020/21 SAVINGS PROGRAMME
64 The Integrated Commissioning Board considered a report of the Chief 
Finance Officer that provided an update on the 2019/20 – 2020/21 Savings 
Programme for the Integrated Health and Social Care Pooled Fund.

Alternatives considered: the Pooled Fund was mandated to set a balanced 
budget and all areas of the Pooled Fund will therefore be reviewed in the 
search for opportunities to close the budget gap.

Resolved:
1. The current budget gap for the Integrated Health and Social Care 
Pooled Fund, detailed in the submitted report, be noted;
2. The Board approves the timelines detailed for Round 1 and 2 savings 
schemes (detailed in paragraphs 5.9 and 5.10 of the report); 
3. The Board confirms that they wished to receive the outcome of 
consultation in line with Option 3 as detailed in paragraph 5.9 of the submitted 
report);
4. The Board delegate the approval of decisions as to whether to include 
the schemes highlighted in paragraph 5.15 of the submitted report to the Chief 
Finance Officer for Health and Social Integration.

Page 7



INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To commission high quality all age health, social care and related services for the 
people of the Borough of Rochdale in order to meet assessed population, community 
and individual need, within the financial resources over which the Board has control.  

2. To agree the Health, Social care and Well-being commissioning strategies and 
commissioning outcomes for Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) and NHS Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) in accordance with 
the agreed delegations from RBC and HMRCCG. 

3. To manage all the pooled budgets established under section 75 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006.

4. To agree the allocation of resources for the delivery of the integrated commissioning 
strategies through the use of pooled or aligned budgets from HMRCCG and RBC.  This 
will ensure that the wellbeing, social care and health-related functions of RBC and the 
prescribed functions of HMR CCG in commissioning health-related services are 
undertaken.  

5. To approve the associated strategic plans and work programmes prepared by the 
integrated commissioning programme leads  

6. To approve integrated workforce development strategies and plans and associated 
resource allocations.

STATUTORY AND PROCEDURAL BASIS

The Integrated Commissioning Board has been established by NHS Heywood, Middleton 
and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) and Rochdale Borough Council 
(RBC) pursuant to the the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Regulations 2000 
as amended, and derives its authority and decision-making powers from these two 
organisations.  

The Integrated Commissioning Board is established as a joint committee under the NHS 
Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 (as amended) 
whereby prescribed NHS bodies and local authorities may form such a joint committee to 
take responsibility for the management of partnership arrangements established in 
accordance with that Order. 

The Local Authorities (Executive and Alternative Arrangements) (Modification of Enactments 
and Other Provisions) (England) Order 2001 provide that where a local authority operates 
executive arrangements, the terms “executive” and “executive arrangements” have the same 
meaning as in Part II of the Local Government Act 2000.”  

ACCOUNTABILITY

1. The Integrated Commissioning Board will report to the Health and Wellbeing Board 
on the achievement of outcomes for commissioned services in meeting the agreed 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



objectives.  The Health and Wellbeing Board shall report concerns that cannot be 
resolved with the Integrated Commissioning Board to RBC and the HMRCCG.

2. The Integrated Commissioning Board will report to RBC and HMRCCG on the 
performance of the commissioning strategy and implementation and on the effective 
use of resources  

Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board who have the delegated accountability on 
behalf of RBC and HMRCCG to manage the functions of the Board shall be responsible for 
reporting to their respective bodies any concerns with regard to the functioning of the Board 
and the capacity of the Board in fulfilling their constitutional or statutory functions.

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD working arrangements

In pursuance of the terms of reference, the Integrated Commissioning Board shall:

1. Assure the HWBB on the delivery of commissioning for outcomes identified in the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and specifically those identified as priority 
outcomes.

2. Oversee the development and establishment of integrated commissioning arrangements 
in the Borough, ensuring that the requirements of both HMRCCG and RBC are met, that 
they are based on best practice, and strategic alignment to the intent of the Greater 
Manchester Devolution Agreement, and specifically that the Greater Manchester Health 
and Social Care Partnership, is maintained.

3. Govern the arrangements for all age integrated commissioning providing assurance to 
HMRCCG and RBC so that their statutory responsibilities are being met, their strategic 
objectives are being addressed and that their combined resources are being used to 
best effect.

4. Govern the arrangements with strong clinical assurance and democratic accountability.

5. Be accountable for the achievement of the agreed commissioning strategies and plans 
on behalf of HMRCCG and RBC.

6. Ensure that the integrated commissioning strategies describe how the outcomes and 
objectives set out in the s75 Agreements and aligned budget arrangements and the 
high-level strategic goals and outcomes of HMR CCG and RBC are to be achieved.

7. Be accountable for the commissioning of a Local Care Organisation (LCO) and for the 
assurance of the effectiveness of the LCO to meet the health, care and wellbeing 
outcomes for Rochdale

8. Commit the resources within the pooled fund to achieve the objectives of the integrated 
commissioning strategies, within the level of delegated resources assigned to it.

9. Be responsible for developing a joint financial plan to underpin the overall 
commissioning strategy and providing direction in relation to investments and savings to 
be made by both partners.

10. Undertake an annual work-plan within the agreed budget to implement the integrated 
commissioning strategies.  The work-plan will include the priorities for each operational 
commissioning programme for that year.  

Page 9



11. Set the standards for, and to monitor and review the outcomes and performance of all 
age commissioned services in line with the integrated commissioning strategy and work-
plan, identifying areas for improvement and areas of good practice, taking action where 
outcomes and performance fall short of requirements

12. Ensure the engagement of stakeholder groups, including users, patients and carers, 
providers and community organisations, in the commissioning cycle including where 
appropriate the co-design of commissioned services, the formulation of the integrated 
commissioning strategy and the annual work-plan.

13. Hold the Integrated Commissioning Directorate and the individual commissioning teams 
of the Partners to account for the performance and delivery of commissioning 
programmes as required by the agreed commissioning plan/strategy, the annual work-
plan, and the s75 Agreements.

14. Identify, record, mitigate and manage all risks associated with integrated 
commissioning, including the maintenance of a risk register which shall be included on 
the corporate risk registers of both HMRCCG and RBC.

15. Review regular performance and financial monitoring reports and ensure, if required, 
appropriate actions are taken to ensure annual delivery of expected performance targets 
and approved schemes within permitted budget for the financial year.  

Meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board

Formal meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board are held in public and shall be held 
on a bi-monthly basis, alternate bi-monthly meetings will be strategy and/or development 
meetings. .  If the business to be considered involves confidential or exempt business, the 
Board can resolve to exclude the public during consideration of that business.

Members of the Board shall meet on an informal basis on further occasions to consider 
matters such as policy and strategy development, operational issues arising etc. in order to 
formulate recommendations, where appropriate, for formal consideration and determination 
by the Board. 

1. Membership

The voting membership of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comprise an 
Independent Chair and membership drawn from the HMRCCG and RBC.  

Independent Chair

An Independent Chair of the Board shall be appointed by the partners.  The 
Independent Chair shall vote only to determine a matter in the event of an equality of 
votes.

A Vice Chair of the Board shall be appointed on a rotating annual basis between a 
HMRCCG member and an RBC member to chair meetings of the Board in the absence 
of the Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall not have a second or casting vote.

The Partners have determined their voting memberships of the Board as follows – 

Page 10



HMRCCG   
 Two lay members 
 Clinical Chair
 Clinical lead

RBC
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Adult Services
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Children’s Services 
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Health and Wellbeing 
 Cabinet member with responsibility for Finance

A nominated substitute is permitted to attend and vote in the absence of a Board 
member provided that notification of the substitution arrangement is given to RBC 
Governance Services by noon on the working day prior to the meeting and the 
nominated substitute is eligible to serve.

The voting membership shall be supported by the following attending Advisors – 

 The Joint Director for Integrated Commissioning
 RBC Chief Executive/HMR CCG Accountable Officer
 Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care 

HMRCCG
 Director of Operations / Executive Nurse
 Chair of the Clinical and Professional Advisory Board

RBC
 Director of Children’s Services
 Director of Public Health and Wellbeing
 Chief Finance Officer
 Director of Resources


 Any further persons, including further Officers of HMRCCG and RBC, as the 
Board consider appropriate

 Healthwatch Rochdale 

2. Quorum

The quorum shall be three voting members from each partner organisation.

3. Voting

The Board shall seek to determine matters by consensus.  If there is no dissent, 
decisions will be taken by the affirmation of the meeting.

If consensus cannot be achieved and in the event of a vote, each voting member from 
the partner organisations shall have one vote and a decision reached by simple 
majority.  In the event of an equality of votes, the Independent Chair shall exercise a 
casting vote.

4. Conduct and Declarations of Interest

Page 11



Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comply with the requirements of 
the Codes and Protocols of their respective organisations.  

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of 
Rochdale Council shall have regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors 
and Voting Co-opted Members at Part 5A to the RBC Constitution and shall declare 
such interests are required under that Code and shall, where required, withdraw from 
the meeting.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of 
HMRCCG shall have regard to Part 8 “Standards of Business Conduct and Managing 
Conflicts of Interest” of the HMR CCG Constitution and shall declare such interests as 
are required under that Part and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting.

With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, the Independent 
chair shall comply with the Constitutional requirements of both RBC and HMRCCG and 
shall declare such interests as are required of either or both partner’s process and shall, 
where required, withdraw from the meeting

5. Meetings Procedure Rules

Formal meetings shall be convened and conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
the Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the RBC Constitution, particularly the Procedure Rules 
that provide the statutory basis for the conduct of meetings and business, and with the 
Standing Orders at Appendix C to the HMRCCG Constitution.  

Where the statutory or procedural requirements for the conduct of meetings differ 
between partners, the option which addresses the statutory position of each partner, or 
which accords greater public access, shall apply.    

The following provisions shall apply to the formal meetings of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board

 Agenda and reports will be published  on the appropriate websites,and made 
available at least five clear working days prior to the day of a meeting.

 Papers and meetings will be open to the public except in circumstances where 
confidential and/or exempt matters are likely to be considered.

 Confidential information means information provided by a Government 
Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which 
cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

 Exempt information means
(i) Information relating to any individual
(ii) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
(iii) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)
(iv) Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any 
labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of 
the Crown and employees of, or officer-holders under, the authority

(v) Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings

(vi) Information which, if disclosed to the public, would reveal that the 
authority proposes to give under any enactment a notice under or by 

Page 12



virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or to make an 
order or direction under any enactment

(vii) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Information is exempt if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.  In all cases, before the public is excluded the meeting 
must be satisfied that, in all circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

 28 days public notice of when Key Decisions, as defined at Part 4B of the RBC 
Constitution, are to be taken shall be given.  In the event of less than 28 days 
notice being provided, the General Exception or Special Urgency provisions of 
Part 4B of the RBC Constitution shall apply.

 28 days public notice of the proposed consideration of business in private shall 
be given.  In the event of less than 28 days notice being provided provisions to 
permit consideration on grounds of urgency as provided for in Part 4B of the 
Council’s constitution shall apply. 

 The Integrated Commissioning Board shall be subject to the Council’s overview 
and scrutiny arrangements, including the eligibility of decisions for call-in and 
review, and the requirement to attend overview and scrutiny meetings.

6. Support

The Integrated Commissioning Board shall establish such operational sub-groups as it 
considers necessary to ensure the delivery of commissioning outcomes.  Such sub-
groups shall be kept under review to ensure their relevance going forward.
At present these are:

 Quality and Safeguarding Group
 Finance, Performance and Risk Sub Group

7. Review of Arrangements

The Integrated Commissioning Board shall review operational arrangements in the final 
quarter of March each year and, where necessary, make recommendations for 
amendments to the parent organisations. 

Page 13



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting  27 November 2018
Portfolio  Integrated 
Commissioning

LeadMember  Sara Rowbotham

Report Author/Lead Officer Karen Kenton
Public/Private Document

Clinical Professional Advisory Panel Term of of Reference

Executive Summary

1. The clinical professional advisory panel  (CPAP) has been established as part 
of the governance arrangements for integrated commissioning. It will be an 
advisory group to the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) ad bring together 
a range of borough wide services to enable clear oversight of the delivery of 
commissioning and consequential provider intent. 

The terms of reference were approved by CCG Governing Body on 16 
November 2018.

Recommendation

2.
ICB ratify the Terms of Reference for the CPAP.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To ensure that CPAP is formally constituted with ICB governance 
arrangements

Key Points for Consideration

4. The objectives of the CPAP are to: 
 Provide a forum to exchange views, knowledge and information on matters of 
mutual professional interest 
 Make recommendations/advice to the Integrated Commissioning Board and to the 
Partnership Boards in response to specific requests that have been made or to inform 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



commissioning intentions and decisions 
 Make recommendations of clinical pathways/innovations that should be progressed 
to the business case stage. 
 Provide advice and clinical input to the development/delivery of QIPP 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. N/A

Risk and Policy Implications

N/A6.

Consultation

7. The TOR were developed in consultation with all CPAP members including 
clinical leads

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. CPAP TOR

2.2 Clinical  
Professional Advisory Panel ToR v0.9.docx

For Further Information Contact: Karen Kenton
Karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925167

Page 15

mailto:Karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk


CLINICAL and PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY PANEL (CPAP)

Terms of Reference

November 2018

Page 16



Committee:  Approval date: dd/mm/yyyy Version number: 

Status: Ratified by: Page 2

VERSION CONTROL

Version Issued to: Date Comments
V0.1 June 2017

V0.2 STC Sept 2017 Revisions: 
 change from health and social 

care to health and care to ensure 
inclusion of public health

 inclusion of public health/needs 
assessment throughout

 include wider business plans not 
just the locality plan as areas of 
focus

 all members have voting rights
 quoracy updated to 50% of 

members including 
clinical/professional and non-
clinical/non-professional 
members

 Chair of CPAP to be member of 
ICB included in section 8

 Corporate sustainability updated 
to reflect business of CPAP

V0.3 STC Dec 2017 Approved 
V0.4 CGC Dec 2017 Approved 
V0.5 CPAP June 2018 Amendments made to content and 

added to new template
V0.6 CPAP June 2018 Revision:

 Add Medicines Optimisation 
to membership.

Approved
V0.7 CPAP Oct 2018 Incorporates comments and 

decisions from CPAP workshop Sept 
18

V0.8 CPAP Oct 2018 Content amended following further 
review.

V0.9 CPAP Nov 2018 Amended quoracy paragraph 
following feedback.

Page 17



Committee:  Approval date: dd/mm/yyyy Version number: 

Status: Ratified by: Page 3

1.1 CPAP is established to support the Integrated Commissioning Directorate 
governance structure, which has been established to deliver the requirements of the 
Locality Plan and a clinically and financially sustainable health and social care 
economy across Rochdale Borough.

1.2 These terms of reference (ToR) set out the membership, remit responsibilities and 
reporting arrangements of the CPAP. 

1.3

1.4

CPAP will operate as an advisory  to the Integrated Commissioning Board 

CPAP will be a system wide meeting bringing together a range of borough wide 
services to enable clear oversight of the delivery of commissioning and consequential 
provider intent

2.1 The purpose of the CPAP is to oversee all of the integrated commissioning business 
linked to the delivery of the Locality Plan and wider business plans of HMR CCG and 
RBC and ensure clinical and professional advice is provided across the health, public 
health and social care agenda. 

2.2 The CPAP’s key functions are:  

• Advisory: a forum that the partnership groups/boards, LEGs, finance, 
quality/safety, commissioning, ICB etc. can refer issues to for 
advice/opinion/steer from across the system.

• Pathway and system design/redesign: lead and inform development of 
effective, safe and integrated pathways of care/support to inform 
commissioning intentions/arrangements for service delivery.

• Ideas generation and innovation.

2.3 Members of the CPAP will conduct its business in accordance with national guidance 
and the Nolan principles of public life. 

2.4 CPAP is an advisory but not decision making group.

3.1 The objectives of the CPAP are to:

 Provide a forum to exchange views, knowledge and information on matters of mutual 
professional interest 

 Make recommendations/advice to the Integrated Commissioning Board and to the 
Partnership Boards in response to specific requests that have been made or to inform 
commissioning intentions and decisions

 Make recommendations of clinical pathways/innovations that should be progressed to 
the business case stage.

 Provide advice and clinical input to the development/delivery of QIPP

1. Introduction 

2. Purpose of the Committee 

3. Objectives of the Committee 

Page 18



Committee:  Approval date: dd/mm/yyyy Version number: 

Status: Ratified by: Page 4

4.1 Membership shall be inclusive across the system and relevant to the issues being 
discussed at each meeting.

There will be core membership to ensure continuity and smooth operation of the 
panel.

In addition there will be flexible membership to allow for most relevant 
clinicians/practitioners to attend dependent on item being discussed drawn from 
across the system (so the expertise in the room supports the agenda/discussion).

Members are not there to represent their organisation or their organisations interests 
(leaving ‘lanyards at the door’) but to provide expert opinion.

Core group membership will consist of:

• CCG Rochdale Locality Lead (Chair)
• RBC/CCG Associate Director of Integrated Commissioning
• CCG Commissioning Programme Consultant
• RBC Assistant Director Adult Care Support & Prevention
• RBC Director of Operations
• CCG Clinical Board Member(s)
• GPs
• Clinical Leads (for designated portfolios)
• CCG Finance Representative
• Lay Member
• CCG Executive Nurse
• CCG/RBC Director of Integrated Commissioning
• CCG Head of Primary Care 
• Medicines Optimisation
• Public Health 
• HealthWatch Rochdale
• Northern Care Alliance – Acute
• Northern Care Alliance – Community 
• Pennine Care Foundation Trust 
• Private Provider Sector 
• Voluntary and Community Sector
• CCG/RBC Commissioning Managers

Fluid membership will include the Local Optometry Committee and Local Dental 
Committee.

5.1 The Chair will be clinical; the vice-chair will be a social care professional.  

5.2 As this is an advisory panel, there is no specific requirement to be quorate; however, 
for a meaningful discussion to take place it is recommended that there is 
representation from the various organisations. 

4. Membership  

5. Quoracy

Page 19



Committee:  Approval date: dd/mm/yyyy Version number: 

Status: Ratified by: Page 5

6.1 The frequency of meetings will be monthly. Meetings will be held on the 1st Friday of 
every month.  Extraordinary meetings may be called by the Chair, if required.  

6.2

6.3

Meetings will be held in a workshop format to promote full and active participation

A summary of discussions will incorporate actions and will be made available to 
CPAP members. 

6.3 All meetings will be scheduled in advance for the full year 

7.1 An up to date register of members’ interest will be maintained and retained.

7.2 Members of the CPAP shall comply with the requirements of the Codes and Protocols 
of their respective organisations.  

8.1 The CPAP will report in respect of the advice/recommendations to the Integrated 
Commissioning Board (ICB) and Governing Body and can accept agenda items from 
the ICB, Locality Engagement Groups, partnership boards and Local Care 
Organisation.

8.2 The CPAP will establish appropriate links with other relevant groups and committees 
within the new integrated governance, NE Sector and Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) sub committees.

8.3 The panel will complete an annual self-assessment of effectiveness, which will inform 
the CCG’s Annual Governance Statement.

9.1 As a healthcare commissioner, the CCG is committed to planning and buying health care 
on a sustainable basis, this committee will support the commitments of the HMR CCG 
Sustainable Development Management Strategy and Delivery Plan, wherever possible in;

1. Commissioning for Sustainability and Adaptation
2. Being a Sustainable Organisation
3. Promoting sustainability with member practices
4. Delivering our commitments and Assessing our Performance

9.2 Commissioning for sustainable development in the health and care system means;

 Planning services which are efficient, effective and safe
 Buying services which provide highest quality at best value, are safe and which have 

least impact on the environment
 Avoiding duplication, inefficiency and waste
 Focus on preventative, proactive care
 Patients public engagement and involvement in planning and design of services
 Building resilience, and protecting and developing community assets and strengths
 Making the best use of all of the resources we have
 Minimising carbon emissions

6. Format of Meetings 

7. Conflicts of Interest 

8. Accountability  

9. Corporate Sustainability  

Page 20



Committee:  Approval date: dd/mm/yyyy Version number: 

Status: Ratified by: Page 6

10.1 These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually as a minimum.

11.1 Secretarial support will be provided to support the Chair in the management of the 
meeting’s business and the collation and distribution of papers. 

11.2 The agenda and papers for meetings shall be distributed a minimum of five working 
days prior to the meeting.  

12.1 The CPAP will agree a work programme at least six months in advance to allow 
engagement of relevant professionals for specific items/topics.

12.2 Items for the agenda and all relevant supporting papers should be submitted to the 
admin lead for approval by the Chair a minimum of 10 working days prior to the 
meeting where possible/if timings of other meetings allow.
  

12.3 All core members will be expected to attend 70% of meetings within the financial year 
or send an appropriate fully briefed.

10 Review Date 

11 Secretarial Support  

12 Conduct of Committee 

Page 21



Page 1 of 6

                                                 

 
Adopting an 

Outcomes Based Framework 
(for commissioning and accountability)

Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

&
Rochdale Borough Council (Commissioning)

(2019 / 2022).

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 6

 
1. Outcomes Based Framework for Rochdale Borough

1.1

1.2

 

What is requested from Board:

Following on from a presentation and discussion at a previous board, Board is now 
asked to consider and formally approve the adoption of outcomes based 
commissioning and accountability in Rochdale, and to support this move, approve (in 
principle) the ten strategic outcomes set out below as the foundation for our local 
Outcomes Framework. 

To achieve our key health and social care outcomes for Rochdale Borough we need a 
clear approach that helps us work together for the benefit of residents. This paper 
describes an approach we can use, starting by setting out a set of ten strategic 
outcomes.  These have been derived from our strategy documents and through recent 
workshops with senior leaders from across our system. They are written in language 
which is most likely to have meaning for our residents. Importantly they reflect the 
interdependency between the determinants of health although it is anticipated that 
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) will focus on those that have a particular 
relevance to Health and Social Care Integration and Transformation (particularly 1-6).

These outcomes are described more fully within our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
and feature recurrently in whole or part throughout our plans, strategies and proposals 
for improving the lives of Rochdale Borough residents. They will be reviewed 
continuously to ensure that they continue to fit with what is right for our borough.  

The Ten proposed strategic outcomes for Rochdale Borough are:

1. All residents feel healthy and remain in good state of health for as long as 
possible.

2. All residents are protected from harm, through support in times of need and by 
safeguarding and protecting those who are vulnerable.

3. All residents have good mental wellbeing, are resilient, enjoy life, and are able to 
cope with life’s challenges.

4. All children are healthy and ready to succeed when they start school and all 
children and young adults achieve their potential. 

5. All residents have the opportunities they need to enable them to help themselves, 
their loved ones and their communities to achieve their full potential. 

6. The borough is a place where people age well, can live with dignity and have 
equitable access to services and opportunities.

7. The borough is safe, resilient, and clean and has good quality places where 
people choose to live, work and invest.

8. The borough has thriving growing businesses and new enterprises and creates 
the conditions for high skill levels and high quality jobs. 

9. The borough has sound finances and is able to provide services to meet 
resident’s needs now and in the future.

10.The borough is friendly, fair and co-operative.  

Page 23



Page 3 of 6

1.3

1.4

1.5

These strategic outcomes are about our people and our place and bring us to a joint 
understanding of what we are trying to achieve. Each outcome may seem to sit 
independently from other outcomes, however we know that what works in achieving 
long-term health, wealth and resilience across populations are approaches that 
consider these as interdependent.

A key first step in our approach to achieving these outcomes includes having agreed 
common understandings about what success looks like; i.e. to picture or imagine what 
it would be like if an outcome was being achieved. For example, if all children are 
healthy and ready to succeed when they start school we imagine happy contented 
children who feel loved and cared about and who easily make friends. We see children 
who live in good homes, have clean safe places to play, breathe clean air and are 
protected from diseases and accidents. We can imagine measuring basic things like 
their teeth, weight and readiness to start school and find that they are doing well. 

Our shared understanding of what success looks like can thus be converted into agreed 
measures of success. What success looks like is often a matter for debate, we therefore 
need a collective approach to prioritising different ways to achieve outcomes and 
choose those we think are the best ones. This choice is crucial as resources are limited 
and without it we spread ourselves too thinly leading to a lack of progress. 

1.6 In brief this approach will therefore assist us to 

i) choose ways to make progress; i.e. the best ways of making an impact

ii) have joined up decisions that describe our relative contributions

iii) decide how we will measure if progress is happening

Expected progress and actions must be realistic, focus on system sustainability, and 
how we can support individuals to maximise their own potential through self-
development and self-help.

2.0 Pathways to progress and Indicators 

2.1

2.2

We want to make progress towards achieving borough outcomes hence the proposed 
approach is to transparently choose a set of pathways that we think logically must take 
us in the right direction and then use indicators to measure progress. OneRochdale 
Health and Social Care (LCO) have, together with commissioners, started to pull out 
what some elements of these pathways might be as part of the ‘Black Hat’ process. 

The pathways or routes to progress we choose will have their own outcomes which are 
held together in a framework. These outcomes are then measured. The chosen 
pathways to progress need to have an understandable easily told story about how they 
work. 

Page 24



Page 4 of 6

2.3 The proposed solution is thus to have a small number of agreed pathways to follow and 
indicators and outcomes that fit together. The indicators of progress need to be 
measurable, timely, accurate and robust and where we cannot directly measure these 
then proxy measures will be selected. 

2.4 Our local measures will be taken from routinely collected data or they may be the same 
as Greater Manchester indicators. However, in picking indicators we will avoid only 
choosing indicators that are easily measurable or only things we are already doing and 
measuring. 

3.0 Our Aspirations - what we want to achieve

3.1

 

Once an indicator for progress along a pathway is agreed we want to set a target for 
improvement. To set this target we need an understanding of the past trajectory and 
some understanding of our possible impact. 

3.2 The scale of the opportunity for how we achieve our improvement targets steers the 
partnerships approach to what we need to do to make change and the extent to which 
a single intervention is likely to be impactful. Few of our outcomes are the responsibility 
of one agency (or could hang on a single intervention) and it is likely that a pathway will 
require multi component interventions that require dispersed accountabilities. 

4.0 Performance measures for services

4.1

4.2

Unnecessary service monitoring will be avoided, instead many services will remain as 
they are, until or unless there is an issue so we can concentrate efforts on a small 
number of pathways to improvement.

Service outcomes should fit with achievement of a wider outcome and be SMART -  
specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, and time bound. It should be achievable and 
‘stretch' the provider yet not be out of reach 

5.0 Using stories to help us to check our progress. 

5.1

5.2

The change we are making is away from outputs from individual services toward a focus 
on achievement of outcomes. These outcomes will be held together in frameworks. 
Local frameworks will cover people, place and organisations. Each framework will be 
linked directly to a measurable strategic indicator and a Borough outcome.  The 
outcomes and indicators in the framework are linked to actions and activity and will fit 
together in a logical way to achieve progress towards achieving a Borough Outcome 
and as such ‘tell a story’.

The outcomes and indicators in a framework are a tool that ICB may wish to scrutinise 
alongside our story of how we intend to achieve progress. An example template for this 
framework is included in Appendix 1. 

Page 25



Page 5 of 6

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Summary and Conclusion

Our intention is to establish a transparent accountable system for making progress 
towards our Strategic Borough Outcomes. This includes having a clear story and 
agreed pathways about how progress is going to be made which can be scrutinised by 
ICB. 

Many different routes to progress can be chosen and we will deliberately pick a small 
number for each Borough Outcome to concentrate upon. These will be informed and 
justified by a story of how we think progress can best be made. This includes our local 
causal understanding of issues and attempts to identify the most important ways to 
make progress. To monitor progress along chosen pathways indicators will be used. 
The indicators measure sub-outcomes that fit together in a logical way so that if a target 
is achieved then it is plausible that progress will be made.

The pathways and their indicators are held together in local outcomes frameworks that 
are linked directly to achieving Borough Outcomes. These frameworks are the 
pathways we have chosen to prioritise and the indicators and sub-outcomes that need 
to be achieved to make progress. 

At Board meetings when progress is reviewed the underpinning story is also looked at. 
This provides context and allows relevant discussion of why something may or may not 
be working well. It also allows consideration of how things can best be joined together 
to increase impact. 

The approach acknowledges that we have to deliver many services to high standards 
but focuses effort on some key outcomes. The approach deliberately by-passes much 
of the complexity to focus on a small number of sub-outcomes that if achieved must 
lead to progress. 

These sub-outcomes are then described as pathways in our local outcomes 
frameworks. The pathways are understood using a story which describes what we want 
to do and who is accountable for achieving what. There will only be a limited number of 
prioritised pathways which will not cover all services or contracts. 

If Board are in agreement to this approach we intend to share progress on key 
outcomes of interest (at the request of Board) commencing April 2019.

Page 26



Page 6 of 6

Appendix 1:  Outcomes Framework Template

What is the main 
Borough Outcome for 
this framework? 

1.0  All residents feel healthy and remain in a good state of health for as long as 
possible

Healthy life expectancy to increase from 58.7 years for woman and 57.8 for 
men to above 60 years in all residents  
Reducing preventable premature mortality so that the directly standardised 
mortality rate per 100,000 in people under 75 falls from 451 to 400.

What are the main 
indicators of progress for 
the Borough Outcome?

Increasing the proportion of residents that are satisfied with their life so that 
the proportion scoring low on the national wellbeing survey falls from 7.1% to 
less than 5%. 

What is the focus of this 
particular framework?

Reducing the impact of cancer for adult residents (see story section below)

Reduction in mortality from all cancers in people under 75What are the main 
indicators for reducing 
the impact of cancer?

A decrease in the proportion of lung, breast, bowel and cervical cancers 
diagnosed at an advanced stage

The Framework 
Story

Cancer is a leading cause of early death and disability in Rochdale Borough. The impact is 
greatest in the poorest groups.  Improvements in diet, more physical activity and 
reducing alcohol can prevent the onset of some cancers but stopping smoking is most 
important. For the most common cancers early diagnosis produces better outcomes. If 
treatments for all patients follow national guidance outcomes are better. We can 
improve local outcomes from cancer by getting more people to go to cancer screening, 
by reducing the prevalence of tobacco smoking and by ensuring treatments match up 
with best practice.  

Pathway One Increase the uptake of breast, bowel and cervical cancer screening
Pathway Two Reduce the prevalence of smoking especially in adults over 40
Pathway Three Increase the proportion of new cancer patients that receive on time all diagnostic tests 

and access to treatment options  as recommended by NICE 
Main indicator 
for pathway 
one

An increase in the uptake of breast, bowel and cervical screening in eligible residents 

Pathway one’s 
indicator story

Currently uptake of cancer screening is low in some groups and overall uptake has fallen 
over recent years, increasing uptake increases the diagnosis of small cancers. Ways to 
increase uptake are known, relevant partners include GPs, screening offices, CCG, 
community workers, residents and pharmacists. Issues can be practical including 
transport and suitable appointments or can be about winning over hearts and minds.

A) GP practices to increase uptake of cancer screening in line with the Core+2 
targets for screening

B) CCG to work with HealthWatch to identify ways and support five GP practices 
increase their uptake of cancer screening  

Service 
performance 
targets 
pathway 1

C) Community connectors service to encourage in the next 12 months 500 eligible 
people who may not use cancer screening to take up the service offer 

Story behind 
service 
performance 
targets

The four key areas we want to look at in relation to our strategic indicator are:
I. Reducing the impact of cancer for adult residents

II. Reducing the impact of cardiovascular disease for adult residents
III. Reducing the impact of respiratory disease 
IV. Reducing the impact of mental ill health.

This framework focuses on the first of these: reducing the impact of cancer.
We want to encourage joint working to increase cancer screening uptake. GP practices 
have agreed stretch targets which can be reported and monitored. The direct impact of 
community work to increase screening is hard to attribute and a simple measure of 
contacts provides assurance that the issue is being talked about and promoted. 

Page 27



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting 27th November
Portfolio Integrated Commissioning – Sara 

Rowbotham
Report Author Prepared by Jennifer Hopes for Karen 

Kenton
Public/Private Document

Proposed changes to service specification for the Posture and 
Mobility Centre

Executive Summary

1. HMR CCG commissions posture and mobility services for children and adults 
from Pennine Care Foundation Trust (PCFT). The service, which runs across 
Bury and HMR, has struggled to meet national access time targets for 
wheelchair services. The service has difficulties in meeting the financial 
pressures of equipment costs despite having a significantly higher financial 
envelope than Greater Manchester peers. 

The CCG has been working with Bury CCG to review this contract from 
2017/18 but to date this has not resolved the fundamental issues. The CCG is 
planning a further comprehensive review of the financial envelope, 
performance delivery and specification for this service in the next 6 to 12 
months with the aim of improving the cost-effectiveness and quality of the 
service. 

In the meantime, Bury CCG have worked closely with PCFT to update the 
specification for the posture and mobility service, and to develop the 3 options 
outlined in the attached paper that can help release capacity into the service 
with the aim of improving delivery of Referral to Treatment Targets and 
reducing costs in the immediate future. 

Recommendation

2. The ICB is asked to approve all 3 options below, to improve access to posture and 
mobility services whilst a wider review is undertaken:

Page 28

Agenda Item 10



Option 1 – Cease automatic provision of wheelchair to all patients on Gold Standard 
Framework End of Life pathway, and replace with needs-based offer 
Option 2 – Withdraw wheelchairs in care homes 
Option 3 - Cease supply of chairs to children and adults where there is no postural / 
permanent mobility, based on behavioural grounds/ infrequent use.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To release £37,371 for re-investment in staffing and equipment costs.

To improve the capacity of the service to deliver its core service and treatment 
requirements within national Referral to Treatment Time (RTT) targets. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The background paper provides detailed background about the options 
proposed and the benefits of making these changes.

Alternatives Considered
Do nothing – in this scenario the service would continue to represent poor 
value for money and continue to struggle to deliver its core service and 
treatment within defined target times. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. HMR CCG commissions the Posture and Mobility Centre as part of a multi-
lateral contract led by Bury CCG. The financial envelope for the service in 
18/19 is £939,439. 

If the options described in detail in the background paper are approved, then 
£37,371 will be released. Pennine Care propose to re-invest this resource in 
additional staffing and equipment costs as described.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. Risks of ceasing the 3 elements of the service described are described within 
the background paper.

Option 1 -  
 Reputation risk resulting from cessation of service
 Patients unable to access provision due to costs involved in sourcing 

own chairs
 Patients sourcing their own chairs could lead to inappropriate chairs 

being chosen, influenced by provider interests rather than to the right 
chair.

 Voluntary / private sector may not have the capacity to cover 
increased demand

Option 2- 
 There is a significant risk that not taking this option opens the trust to 

Page 29



liability in the risk of potential injury to patients through being 
transported in not fully working order chairs.

 There is a possibility that there will be an increase in referrals from 
homes for the postural assessment for patients to receive a postural 
chair.  In these instances homes would use the chair for the postural 
needs of the patient and receive an individual chair for that patient. 

 Reputational risk that the homes would not welcome the withdrawal. 
 Reputational risk due to clients and/or families being persuaded by the 

home to purchase chairs for residents.

Option 3 –
 There is significant difficulty in sourcing wheelchairs for children on the 

private supply market.
 Reputational damage due to exclusions and difficulties faced by users, 

parents, carers and educational leads.
 Continuation of provision indicates a risk around deprivation of liberty 

depending how the chair is used on behavioural grounds
 Potential risk of excluding children from school trips.
 Significant risk of injury as a result of uncontrolled behaviour.

To mitigate the risks, the CCG and social care commissioning teams will 
support PCFT to deliver joint communications to service users and health 
and care teams who refer into the service, on the reasons for the change in 
access criteria and how to access alternative service provision (including 
hiring and buying alternatives).

Consultation

7. The Clinical and Professional Advisory Committee (CPAP) discussed the 
options in this paper. The CPAP approved options 1 and 2 but expressed 
some concerns about option 3 as withdrawing this offer may limit the mobility 
of some families. However a recent review of the Manchester and Trafford 
Posture and Mobility Service concluded that the purpose of the service is to 
assist mobility and that restraining a person in a buggy or wheelchair against 
their will could be considered to be a Deprivation of Liberty. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

Proposal PMC Paper 
for Clinical Cabinet Sep 18 Submitted.docx

HMR EA template for 
commissioning Oct 2017 - PMC.doc

For Further Information Contact: Karen Kenton
Karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 30

mailto:Karen.kenton@rochdale.gov.uk


01706 925167

Page 31

tel:+441706925167


 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

   
Date of Meeting: 27

th
 November 2018  

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing  
Report Author: Leanne Drury  
Public/Private Document: Public  

 

 

  
  

 

 ICB Performance Report  
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.  

 Illustrated in Appendix A and B are the ICB Constitution Performance 
Scorecards, reporting progress against the NHS constitution and Adult Social 
Care indicators   
 
Within Appendix A are; 
NHS Constitution and Adult Social Care indicators with granular detail facts 
as to what effect this has had on Rochdale residents, using 2017/18 data as 
a 12 month summary.  The report also contains predictive modelling, giving 
estimates as to year end summary position to those indicators listed within 
the report using historic data trends and input from commissioning leads. 
 
Reported for this period for NHS Constitution are; 

1. Accident and Emergency (A&E)  
2. Referral to Treatment (RTT)  
3. Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP)  
4. Cancer two week wait and Breast two week wait  
5. Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Recovery  

 
Within Appendix B; 
Reported for this period for Adult Social Care are; 

1. Cash Budgets 
2. Reabled or remain at home 
3. Learning Disabilities 
4. Delayed transfer of care 
5. Long Term Support 
6. Carers receiving a carer specific service 

 
 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 11



Recommendation 

 
2. ICB are requested to note the content of this report and feedback on the new 
report format and contents 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Regular update to ICB 

 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 

Key points for consideration are provided in the detailed performance 
dashboard appended to this document 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Not applicable 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Not applicable 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Commissioning Leads 

Business Intelligence 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.  Number One Riverside, 3rd Floor, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale  
Strategic Commissioning Programme 
Director  
M: 07747 473888  
E: scroasdale@nhs.net  

 

Page 33



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

17,692

3 10

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard-Constitution Exception Report

52 week breaches

17,79017,56016,96216,93416,447<1668016,680

n/a

Waiting List- Rochdale's 

current patients waiting to 

be treated
3/10

4/10

2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19Indicator GM Peers

1 best 10 worst

The number of patients on a waiting list for treatment is increasing in parallel with the decline in RTT performance. There are two explanations for this increase, the first being 

a shortage of clinic capacity to see and treat all the patients, and the second being possible data validation errors.

How many Rochdale patient breaches have there been of the zero tolerance to any 52 week breaches-Rochdale have failed the 52 week target-further detail reported below. 

52 week breaches- Commissioners are working with our main provider PAHT in order to validate patient waiting list data. As described in the RTT section, the CCG is working to integrate providers. An element of this is focussed on helping appropriate people to access treatment in community based settings as 

an alternative to hospital based care, thus helping to reduce waiting lists. For the 52 week breaches at MFT, Commissioners are receiving regular communications from contract colleagues at Manchester Health and Care Commissioning (HMCC) - as HMR is associate to their contract with MFT. We are proactively 

chasing information from MHCC and MFT colleagues to confirm the To Come In (TCI) date for the patients who have breached, to ensure that they are being treated and that no avoidable harm has occurred.

Breaches at PAHT- the Trust provide updates to all North East Sector CCGs at a monthly elective care meeting. Commissioners are working with PAHT contract colleagues to agree a  process that enables Commissioners to gather more bespoke information about its patients, including their TCI date and evidence 

that the patients have not had avoidable harm in waiting for their treatment.

• PAHT has identified a number of actions to reduce the number of patients waiting:

o Increase in theatre capacity starting in Q4.  This will mainly increase the proportion of elective activity undertaken as day case procedures;

o Increase in outpatient activity by maximising Consultant PAs to focus on clinical sessions;

o New Endoscopy tender has been awarded with a start date of 1st November;

o Continued validation of waiting lists to reduce duplicates, e.g. 300 duplicate digestive disorder cases have been identified and closed;

o Review of waiting lists being undertaken to identify procedures of limited clinical value which could be repatriated back to primary care; 

o Demand management.  At a primary care level the CCG is engaging with GPs to explain the pressures and review referral pathways.  Also underway is the re-introduction of further PC clinical triage, commencing with digestive disorders

Pennine Acute 

Performance

92.0%90.3% 87.3%85.7%86.5%87.0%87.6%88.5%

03

Incompletes- RTT performance has been declining nationally and locally in response to increasing demand. The 

limited capacity is further restricted by growth in demand for urgent treatment that takes priority, including 

investigation and treatment of suspected cancer and urgent care in winter months.

The 18/19 planning guidance asked CCGs to work with providers to ensure that performance does not dip below the 

17/18 March position of 88.5%, and ideally improve. The national target was previously 92%.  In order for providers 

to be exempt Providers had to agree control totals with NHS Improvement. 

Pennine Acute NHS Trust were unable to accept the control total proposed by NHS Improvement and the 

consequence of this is that the Trust will not have access to the reduced RTT indicator target. Pennine Acute as a 

trust are reported above against the 92% target.

The majority of HMR patients are treated by Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust (PAHT), with significant activity at 

University of Manchester Foundation Trust (UMFT) and Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT). PAHT and UMFT are 

both experiencing significant capacity problems in the majority of specialties which has had an impact on 

commissioners RTT position.   At present PAHT and all providers combined are performing below the target standard 

for commissioned patients. 

7 7

17,790

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Action:

Waiting Lists- Commissioners have commissioned new pathways for Gastroenterology, Ear/Nose/Throat, Gynaecology, Urology and Orthopaedics  in order to try and better integrate NHS and Independent Sector capacity in Rochdale. Integrated Elective Care Pathways (IECP) aims to get more patients into 

community-based alternatives to hospital-based care, reduce avoidable surgical and medical treatments, and prevent duplication of appointments and diagnostic tests. Commissioners plan to undertake a formal review of this service during Q3 and Q4, and to work with the lead provider to agree a 

transformation plan that accelerates delivery of these ambitions.

Commissioners have been working with providers to commission a new service that would improve the management of referrals for elective care, known as the 'single elective access model'. Unfortunately the preferred-provider has not been able to take on this service, so the CCG is exploring other 

commissioning options. 

Commissioners are continuing to work in partnership with Pennine Acute and other North East Sector CCGs to introduce new processes that will reduce procedures of limited clinical value, thus freeing up capacity for priority treatments.

4

88.2%

5

Our local RTT performance mirrors trend nationally. Based on  Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust  (PAHT) delivery against the recovery trajectories in the last 12 months confidence that recovery will be met is low.  Within regards to 52 week breaches this target has not be met, which mirrors 

the Greater Manchester position. However providers have been forthcoming about the likely increase in breaches, whilst they work towards RTT recovery. Both PAHT and MFT are proactively validating their patient access systems to ensure that no patients have been left untreated. This has led 

to identified breaches. 

Statistically when projecting to the remainder of the year, as at  Sept 18, we will  underachieve target with 86.4%.

Predicted performance - Referral to Treatment

88.2%88.1%89.0%88.9%88.5%83.6% 9/10 Background and current performance 

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

Referral to Treatment 

(RTT)-How many Rochdale 

patients are treated within 

18 weeks following  

referral from a GP? 

86.8%87.2%87.9%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

On Pathway Waiting List

15/11/2018
1/3

P
age 34



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

89.8% 91.6% 92.1% 89.5% 90.8%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

83.60%A&E- How many Rochdale 

patients are seen within 4 

hours of attending all A&E 

departments?

86.3%84.2%86.7%83.9%88.9%88.3%85.8%95%82.30%Pennine Acute 

Performance

Target 2018/19

1 best 10 worst

Local performance data, which is a true reflection of 

all Rochdale patients A&E activity

GM Peers

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

*5/1088.3%85.8%90%

*1/10

Action:

50.0%

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Early Intervention 

Psychosis (EIP)- How many 

Rochdale patients with 

psychosis are treated 

within two weeks of 

referral?

15.7% 53% 38.46% 67.4% 9/1071.43% 66.7% 75.0%

86.7%84.0%88.9%

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Action:

Predicted performance - A&E

Predicted performance - Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP)
A significant amount of money was awarded to PCFT as part of this funding a programme of work was initiated across the footprint. PCFT have reported that they are achieving target, as with IAPT this cannot be reflected within the dataset reported until the national data is published. PCFT are 

working closer the access team,  along with additional recruitment into the team to boost the assessment function. In addition the  commissioner holds regular performance and contracting meeting with the provider, which also has clinical lead involvement.  

Statistically when projecting to the remainder of the year as at  Sept 18, we will  achieve with 56.3% (please note the number associated are very small and therefore the percentage result can vary significantly)

PCFT and HMR to benchmark EIP performance against high-performing services within PCFT footprint to determine reasons for under performance, review current service model

Clarification required on agreed additional investment into service and scrutiny around how (and if) this money has been spent on additional recruitment – still some severe risks around recruitment and retention that have potential to undermine PCFTs planned trajectory for EIP. HMR & PCFT clinical leads and 

commissioners to attend a joint meeting to collaboratively develop a service improvement plan and actions, understand challenges and seek mitigation on areas such as data quality provision. 

Commissioners asked Pennine Care to be clearer on its approach to service improvement and managing risks to 

service delivery following an investment of £307k. This plan was requested in July 2018 but has not yet been received 

and is being followed up via contract meetings.  

Commissioners are not clear how the service has managed to achieve its targets over the past two months and 

significantly reduce its longstanding patient waiting list. Although the latest data shows that the monthly 

performance target for June has been achieved, there is a discrepancy in this data which is currently under review to 

provide confidence and assurance in the data.

Commentary

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Background and current performance 

The requirement for providers and CCGs to achieve 95% for the four hour A&E waiting times by March 2018 was 

replaced by an ambition for performance to be at 90% for September 2018 and 95% by March 2019. In order for 

providers to be exempt Providers had to agree control totals with NHS Improvement. 

Pennine Acute NHS Trust were unable to accept the control total proposed by NHS Improvement and the 

consequence of this is that the Trust will not have access to the reduced A&E indicator target. 

Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust report trust level performance data via daily reporting. Year to date, as at 4th 

November 2018, PAHT are achieving 85.9% of patients seen within 4 hours. Performance by site is reported as; 

Fairfield General Hospital 92.7%, North Manchester General Hospital 80.5%, Royal Oldham 80.7% and Rochdale 

Infirmary Urgent Care Centre 97.7%. Rochdale is again the best performing across GM when using the accurate local 

datasets.

Activity at A&E departments has increased, and is currently 2.8% over plan. The year to date comparisons have 

shown a 3.2% increase over the corresponding period in 2017/18

Timeline rolling 12 months

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

Background and current performance 

The development of the Urgent Care Plan via the Urgent Care Locality Board has a section focusing on strengthening the ‘front door’ of A&E departments. 

Workstream ongoing that aim to improve patient flow within A&E or meet the 4 hour target include;

• Streaming by Advanced Practitioners nurses, who will signpost and divert people away from A&E

• Ambulatory Care Referral Unit (AMRU) development assessment and ambulatory needs and then home 

• Surgical Assessment Care Unit (SACRU) development-pre-assessment of surgical needs and then booked into planned care, as required

The recent MIAA review of the Rochdale Urgent Care Centre identified 30k patients are travelling to Royal Oldham Hospital and Fairfield for their urgent care needs. In response to this review, we are rebranding the UCC to Rochdale Urgent Treatment Centre (in response to NHSE requirement) and will positively 

promote it so that local people will increase usage of the Urgent Treatment Centre. Our intention is that 10k patients will be repatriated from Royal Oldham and Fairfield in 2019/20 which will reduce A&E referrals and admissions.

1 best 10 worst

Statistically when projecting to the remainder of the year, as at  Sept 18, we will be 4.7% above plan and underachieve target with 88.2%.

86.7%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Attendances Performance Target

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

0

5

10

15

Seen Referred Series3 Series4

15/11/2018
2/3

P
age 35



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

Apr May Jun Jul Aug YTD

74.8% 71.1% 73.3%

79.4% 89.6%

2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

1 best 10 worst

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19

40.7% 40.7%

Background and current performance 

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

73.1% 93% 50.8% 76.7%72.5%

U
n

availab
le

 at p
rese

n
t

89.9% 93% 73.1% 79.0% 74.3%Cancer two week wait-

How many Rochdale 

patients referred on the 

urgent two week suspected 

cancer pathway?

94.7%

There are currently significant challenges to both delivering cancer performance and providing a consistent quality service to ensure positive patient experience and improve cancer survival.  Commissioners, through the North East Sector, The Christie and GM Cancer have joined with the NCA (PAHT) to establish 

a single group (NES Cancer Improvement Committee) to support recovery  and there is a commitment to work together to establish a robust recovery and improvement plan.

The NES cancer Improvement Plan has been agreed across GM, CCG’s and NCA with funding identified aiming to deliver compliance of:

•Two week standard by Nov 2018

•62 Day by March 2019

A NES Cancer Service Improvement Committee has been established to ensure delivery

Update

An element of the plan is to recruit to key clinical posts and non-clinical MDT Coordinator and Navigator roles. There are significant challenges and gaps in current core clinical capacity creating a high reliance on agency staff who do not always have the  full skillset and training in all clinical areas required. The 

NES CCG’s are exploring a number of community GP direct access diagnostic options to aid early diagnosis or identify benign conditions to prevent unnecessary 2ww referrals.  

-2ww Breast Symptoms- Two breast locums have now been appointed at PAHT (one covering for maternity leave) so there are now no gaps in services. PAHT has reported that there will be significant improvements in the achievement of this target from October 18 onwards. Now that two locum staff have been 

appointed the achievement of the 62 day referral to treatment target should be much improved from October onwards with anticipated target achievement  from December onwards.

-Bowel:– The gastro pathway has been a challenge due to the amount of referrals coming through the system (many inappropriate).  The NES CCG’s are working in partnership to try and address the issue at source by looking at the possibility of introducing GP direct access Faecal Immunochemical diagnostic 

testing (FIT), which will replace the current FOB test (Faecal Occult Blood Test). FIT is a diagnostic test that acts as a primary care triage tool to identify those low risk patients that require further investigation via colonoscopy or CT colonography. FIT is not a ‘rule out’ for patients who are medium and high risk 

patients.  Medium and high risk presentations will continue on an urgent 2ww pathway as per the NICE NG12 guidance.  FIT can detect more cancers, and particularly advanced adenomas (tumours that may become cancers) and will have fewer false positives.

Achievement of the cancer access targets is a key performance indicator for CCGs and the Trust.  PAHT has been 

experiencing significant performance issues during 17/18 which have prevailed throughout 18/19 with significant 

failure in a high number of Cancer Waiting Times (CWT) targets, including the TWW suspected Cancer GP Referral 

target and the suspected Cancer GP Referral to Treatment target.  This failure has significantly contributed to GM 

failing the 62DGP standard during 18/19 for the first time since 11/12.

The cause of this poor and deteriorating performance is multi-factorial but significant capacity issues for both and 

support services is an underlying significant contributor. breast symptoms 

Action:

Commentary

Predicted performance - Cancer two week wait
One of the tumour groups with the highest referrals is Lower GI. There are three main remedial actions that require action to address current capacity issues in upper and lower GI, to mitigate increasing demand in colonoscopy waiting times : 1. The highest priority is FIT (Faecal 

Immunochemical diagnostic testing), which has buy in from the NES commissioning colleagues. Discussions are taking place with PAHT regarding analyser test costs, with anticipated costs of; cost per FIT at  £8 versus colonoscopy at £403. 2. GP education on the IBS and IBD pathways, in order to 

avoid inappropriate 2ww referrals. 3. Having access to the data from PAHT sites to accurately measure conversion rates(number of cancers diagnosed versus number of referrals)  and to accurately measure each cancer pathway. If these can be mobilised there is confidence that the 2 week wait 

Statistically when projecting to the remainder of the year, as at  Sept 18: Two week wait Breast- we will underachieve target with 86.5%. Two week wait total- we will underachieve target with 76.8%

1 best 10 worst

Improving Access to 

Psychological Therapies  

(IAPT)-How many Rochdale 

patients with depression 

and/or anxiety disorders 

are recovering?

47.8% Initial reports reflect that ‘Thinking Ahead’ had achieved the recovery and prevalence targets for these months. 

When these figures were re-evaluated, it was found they had no longer achieved the expected recovery targets due 

to a combination of two data entry issues. Firstly, clients were recorded as having assessment instead of “assessment 

and treatment” and secondly, clinicians were not inputting discharge data after the national upload but back dated to 

dates before the national upload. This means that this data is not reflected in the national figures.

51.4% 50% 45.0% 44.4%

U
n

availab
le

 at p
rese

n
t

Indicator

Action:

As an outcome and action Thinking Ahead clinicians are now following strict policy and procedures to ensure data is accurately recorded prior to upload on database systems, and discharges will be managed by a senior administrator to ensure consistency and timely entering of data.Thinking Ahead have assured 

the CCG that they now have a more consistent and substantive workforce in place , and  as part of any new staff induction all staff receive training which focuses data quality, with a specific focus on  understanding KPI’s and all data reporting requirements such as recovery data. 

There is a clear focus on continued professional development to promote consistency and ensures all therapies are evidence based and follow nice guidelines. All Psychological Well Being Practitioners (PWP’s) receive weekly case management and monthly clinical supervision. At step 2 the PWP workforce 

delivering IAPT treatments are IAPT qualified PWP’s or in training, all substantive counsellors are trained in delivering CFD (Counselling for depression) and all High Intensity CBT Step 3 therapists are accredited.

GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

Background and current performance 

Predicted performance -Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
Thinking Ahead have reported locally that they have achieved Aug and Sept targets. Although this will not be reflected in the national datasets until publication. Confidence levels in Thinking Ahead target achievement has improved based on the following actions that they have undertaken 

which include;  The service is now fully staffed,  Staff have undertaken addition training that focusing on data quality and an understanding of Performance measures, patients are now routinely contacted and offered alternate interventions whilst on the waiting list, the commissioner and 

provider hold regular meetings to discuss operational, contracting and wider referral education gaps within GP practices. 

Statistically when projecting to the remainder of the year, as at  Sept 18, we will be 5.0% under plan and underachieve target with 45.0%

6%

26%

Ju
l

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

Performance Target

0%

50%

100%

400

600

800

1000

Seen Referred

15/11/2018
3/3

P
age 36



Apr May June July August September YTD

Apr May June July August September YTD

73.8% 74.2% 84.0% 82.0%

Apr May June July August September YTD

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Learning Disabilities- The 

percentage of Rochdale Adult 

Social Care service users with a 

learning disability who are in paid 

employment

6.5% 7% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.60%6.50% 6.80%

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

6.60% 3rd best in GM at 

year end 17/18

At the end of 17/18, the north west average was 6.3% and the GM average was 5.3%. We have set a challenging 

target which we will aim to achieve by year end and our performance is strong against GM peers

Actions:

We have ongoing work with providers to support people into paid employment and also improvements in the 

data on our systems to ensure all employment statuses are recorded

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Reabled or remain at home-

Percentage of Rochdale service 

users who are reabled or remain 

at home with a care package 

subsequent to a period of 

reablement 

77% 77% 79.8% 80.8% 79.1%

Th
is is n

o
t b

en
ch

m
arked

 again
st an

y 

o
th

er co
u

n
cils

The service defines reabled where the service users either has no ongoing  care needs or requires less support via 

a care package than when they entered into the stars service. There were over 1,300 service users who accessed 

the STARs service in 2017/18- 89% of these were over 65 years old. 15% of stars discharges went back into 

hospital. For the first 4 months of 2018, 90% of people who were discharged from hospital into stars were still at 

home 91 days after their discharge which is a good measure of reablement success and a good national 

performance.

Actions
The stars service performance has continued to improve over the last few years. No actions required at present. 

The months where performance has dropped under target were mainly due to a higher number of service users 

returning to hospital in that month. 

37.2%

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

39.9% 2nd best in GM at 

the end of 17/18.

39.8% 39.9%

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard Exception Report- Adult Social Care

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

The north west average for this indicator at year end was 23% and GM average was 24%. The performance has 

seen a steady increase over the past 3 years and the trend is continuing. The service users included in this 

indicator are those who have a package of care and take this as a cash budget instead of a managed budget. 

Service users who take their personal budget as a cash payment have more choice and control over how they are 

supported through their allocated budget and it gives more flexibility to the service user.

Actions

This measure performance will increase through the year and is expected to be exceeded by year end. 

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Cash Budgets-The percentage of 

Adult social Care service users with 

self directed support who take this 

as a cash budget

35% 40% 35.3% 35.5% 37.2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

service users with self directed support who
take this as a cash budget

Target

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

 service users who are reabled or remain at
home with a care package subsequent to a
period of reablement

Target

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

service users with a learning disability who are in
paid employment

1/2 15/11/2018

P
age 37



Apr May June July August September YTD

310 328 384

Apr May June July August September YTD

13 21 11

Apr May June July August September YTD

1621 1728 1897

Actions:

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

1,897 1st at year end 

17/18

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

1 best 10 worst

Carers receiving a carer 

specific service- how many 

carers in Rochdale have received 

at least information and guidance 

from Adult social Care during the 

year

2,347 2500 978 1173 1497

Long Term Support- How many 

Rochdale Adult social Care service 

users, aged 65 and over, have 

their support needs met by ASC 

funded permanent admission to 

residential or nursing care.

247 243 for 

the year

28 29 21 123 4th best in GM at 

year end 17/18

There is  an expectation that the  number of admissions is slightly higher in quarter one and quarter 4. Although 

the number of admissions in quarter 1 is higher than the expected target, it is still lower than the same period 2 

years ago and the proportional variance against the number of people in residential/ nursing care is lower than 

the same period last year (meaning there are less people in council funded placements against June last year)

Actions:

Every permanent placement by the local authority is scrutinised to ensure that this is the only available option. 

With the aging population, it is expected that the numbers will increase however the age of people entering into 

a permanent placement has increased meaning they are able to stay at home longer if that is their wish

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

2,152 *2/10 The Greater Manchester average for June was 693 delayed days and Rochdale was the second best performance 

in Greater Manchester for that month. 70% of the delays in June were NHS attributable, 12% both NHS and Social 

Care and 18% were Social Care attributable delays. 182 of the 341 delayed days were acute and 159 non-acute. 

There is some investigation ongoing as to the method of data recording in the non acute performance - there 

may be some performance revision in future months as this happened in the previous year. 

Actions:

Data is monitored closely by all agencies on this indicator and although performance is off track against the set 

target, this is being reviewed as part of a wider BCF target review

Delayed transfer of care (days)-
How many Rochdale patients has 

their discharge delayed from a 

hospital seting(all reasons and 

causes- NHS and Social Care) 

3,154 2,613 for 

the year, 

653 YTD

406 383 341

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Commentary

Background and current performance 

This indicator is a cumulative one which is zero based at the start of each new financial year. In addition to Adult social Care, Rochdale residents can access carer support 

through N Compass carers resource who provide many services such as advocacy, crisis planning, short break payments and information and advice. Since N Compass 

started providing addidional support, there has been performance improvement of 15% in quarter one against the same period last year. As well as information and 

advice, Adult social Care complete formal assessments of needs for carers and packages of care where applicable

This indicator is performing well again GM peers (year end 17/18) and against expected levels. 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

ap
ri

l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Delayed Transfers of Care (Days) Target

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

long term support needs met by permanent
admission to residential or nursing care which
is LA supported (aged 65+)

Target

2/2 15/11/2018

P
age 38



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting : 27th November 2018
Portfolio : Integrated Commissioning Lead Member : Cllr Rowbotham
Report Author : Rob Kilvington Lead Officer : Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document : Public

2019/20 – 2020/21 Savings Programme for the Integrated Health & 
Social Care Pooled Fund

Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) with 
recommendations regarding Savings Proposals to contribute to closing the 
budget gap for the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund for 2019/20 & 
2020/21.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that ICB  :-
a) Approve the savings programme timetable initially discussed and revised 

at ICB in October 2018, and detailed at Appendix 1 to this report.
b) Consider the savings proposals incorporated in the report that forms part 

of the Private agenda and, if minded to accept the proposals, 
recommend them for implementation or consultation as appropriate as 
noted.

 
Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The Pooled Fund operates under Section 75 of the National Health Service 
2006 Act and is mandated to set a balanced budget at the start of each 
financial year. 

The last report taken to ICB on 30th October confirmed budget gaps for The 
Pooled Fund of :-

 £12.3m in 2019/20 and 
 £12.7m in 2020/21

Page 39

Agenda Item 13



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

It should be noted whilst this is a best estimate of the budget gap at this time 
until the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) receives its allocations, national 
planning guidance and concludes its contract negotiations the final gap will not 
be known.  It is therefore essential that work commences as soon as possible 
to implement all schemes that are approved.

All savings schemes / proposals have been reviewed by a working group 
including representatives from the Commissioning, Finance, HR, Legal and 
Equality teams and have been broken down into 3 distinct groups :-

 Contract Negotiation – schemes will be delivered through the Contract 
Negotiation process undertaken within the Health sector, with no specific 
need for public consultation

 Business as Usual – schemes will be delivered by Council services or 
the CCG as part of their business as usual processes, with no specific 
need for public consultation. These are included for information only.

 Consultation – schemes are subject to a period of public consultation 
with stakeholders as the proposal will either cease in totality the 
provision of a service or significantly change it

The savings schemes / proposals that are being considered in this report reflect 
the first of 2 initial rounds of proposals. The proposals that form part of Round 2 
will be brought to ICB on 29th January 2019.

The table below summarises the impact on the budget gap of the proposals 
being considered :-

 

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

"Contract Negotiation" Proposals 4 1,378 450
"Business as Usual" Proposals 17 3,645 -30 1,233 -35
Proposals subject to "Consultation" 1 259
Total 22 5,282 -30 1,683 -35

2019/20 2020/21
No of 

Proposals
The impact of Round 1 Savings Proposals on the 
Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund

Details of all the savings scheme proposals can be found in the private part of 
the agenda.

Consultation for those savings scheme proposals that require consultation will 
commence on 3rd December 2018. Consultation will finish on 16th January 2019 
and the outcome of consultation will be presented to ICB at its meeting on 29th 
January 2019. 

The full timetable for the 2019/20 – 2020/21 Savings Programme can be found 
at Appendix 1.

Alternatives Considered

Para 3.1 notes that the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund is 
mandated to set a balanced budget and all areas of the Pooled Fund will 
therefore be reviewed in the search for opportunities to close the budget gap. 

Page 40



4.9 ICB could decide not to implement some / all of these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

Paragraph 3.2 confirms that the current budget gaps for 2019/20 & 2020/21 are 
£12.3m and £12.7m respectively.

Paragraph 4.4 confirms that Round 1 proposals, if approved, could reduce the 
Pooled Fund  gaps in 2019/20 & 2020/21 by £5.25m and £6.93m respectively. 

Paragraph 4.3 confirms that a second round of savings scheme proposals will be 
brought to ICB in January aimed at closing the remaining budget gaps.  

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Section 75 of the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local 
authorities and health bodies to establish pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual detailed 
reports.  To manage this risk ICB will be supplied with copies of all available 
implications to make informed decisions.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 
the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both requirements 
for an open and transparent consultation process and the inclusion of equality 
impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a failure 
on the part of the Council and the CCG to fulfill statutory duties.

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third parties 
which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that does not prove 
possible) can only be terminated by substantial notice periods and 
consider the financial implications of any variations.

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property assets. 
Some have restrictions on usage, some have conditions attached to 
gifts and planning restrictions might apply. On this last aspect, there 
needs to be separation of the Council’s statutory role from that of 
property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff with the 
resultant need to undertake statutory consultations.

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will involve 
statutory consultations.

 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including staff related 

Page 41



6.5

6.6

6.7

matters).

The personnel implications arising for the proposals contained within this 
report summarised below:

 Some of these proposals may result in a reduction in the number of 
established posts within the Council and depending on the outcome of 
consultation and final decisions made these will be deleted as a 
consequence of these proposals. However at this current time the 
proposals that include deletions of posts are not envisaged to place 
anyone at risk of redundancy as they are vacant posts to be deleted.

 If after the review of the proposals, occupied posts are identified as 
potentially redundant and which employees will be at risk of 
redundancy, the Council and the CCG will apply its established policies 
and procedures. This would include the application of the Council or 
CCG’s redundancy process as applicable.

 Where posts proposed to be deleted are occupied the employee(s) 
concerned would become at risk of redundancy.

 If this arises any employees affected will be provided with support 
through the Council’s and the CCG’s established procedures for 
dealing with staff that are at risk of redundancy.

 Through the application of these policies and procedures, the Council 
and the CCG would seek to minimise the number of employees who 
may be compulsory redundant.  In this respect, the Council and the 
CCG would seek to provide suitable alternative employment wherever 
this is possible and will seek to achieve reductions by voluntary 
measures wherever possible, by seeking volunteers for early 
retirement/voluntary redundancy.

 The proposals will be subject to full consultation with staff and trade 
unions in line with statutory requirements.   It is considered that the 
total number of jobs affected during the budget setting process is likely 
to be below 100. However, to ensure sufficient consultation takes place 
the Council is preparing to comply with the statutory minimum 
consultation period of 30 days (which is required where there is to be 
100 or less redundancies) before making final decisions on its 
proposals.  In addition, the Council will also ensure that the 
consultation process is meaningful and commences when potential 
redundancies are contemplated, that full consideration is given to the 
outcome and any comments received before final decisions are made 
regarding implementation, which are also legal requirements.

 The outcome of consultations will be reported to ICB to allow for full 
consideration of feedback and final decisions will be made on the 
proposals taking into account the outcome of consultation.

Equalities Impacts

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process on general 

Page 42



services in previous years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the 
cohort of staff affected by these saving proposals in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  A 
full equalities impact assessment will be undertaken following the 
implementation of the savings proposals, at which point we may need to 
revisit our equalities action plan or other policies.

Consultation

7.1 This report has been produced in consultation with colleagues from both the 
Council and CCG. The Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 28th November 2018 will be consulted with on the saving 
proposals.  

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 

For Further Information Contact: Rob Kilvington, 01706 925444
rob.kilvington@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 43



Appendix 1 – Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund 2019/20 - 2020/21 
Savings Programme – Timetable

ICB Pooled Fund Saving Programme Timeline

Date Meeting/Event Purpose
2018

November

Process 1. 2nd November Deadline for written saving proposals
2. W/C 5th November Working Group 
(HR/Legal/Finance/Equalities/Assets)
3. 12th November Finance, Performance & Risk Group
4. 14th November papers to Integrated Commissioning Board
5. 27th November Integrated Commissioning Board
6. 29th November Health, Schools and care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

December Consultation Round 1 1. 3rd December start of formal consultation
2019

January

Post Consultation Round 1 
Process and Report

Round 2 Consultation

1. 16th January Consultation ends
2. 17th January Final submission of Post Consultation Reports
3. 18th January Savings Working Group 
(HR/Legal/Finance/Equalities/Assets)
4. 18th January Finance, Performance & Risk Group
5. 18th January papers to Integrated Commissioning Board
6. 29th January Integrated Commissioning Board (outcome of 
consultation)
7. 30th January Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

1. 7th January Deadline for written savings proposals
2. 14th January Savings Working Group 
(HR/Legal/Finance/Equalities/Assets)
3. 15th January Finance, Performance & Risk Group
3. 16th January papers to Integrated Commissioning Board
4. 29th January Integrated Commissioning Board
5. 30th January Health, Schools and care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
6. 31st January formal consultation starts on round 2 proposals

March 

Post Consultation Round 2 
Process and Report

1. 1st March Consultation ends
2. 6th March final submission of post consultation reports
3. 7th March Savings Working Group (HR, Legal, Finance)
4. 8th March Finance, Performance & Risk Group
5. 11th March papers to Integrated Commissioning Board
6. 19th March Integrated Commissioning Board (post consultation round 
2)
7. TBC Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Page 44



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Integrated Commissioning Board - Terms of Reference
	7 Clinical professional Advisory Panel (CPAP) - Terms of Reference
	Agenda Item 7 - Clinical  Professional Advisory Panel ToR v0.9

	8 Outcomes framework
	10 Posture and mobility
	11 Performance Report - for information
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix A ICB Constitution Performance Dashboard November 18
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix B ICB Adult Social Care Performance November 18

	13 Savings Proposals
	Agenda Item 13 - Part 2 -Savings Proposals for 2019-20 ICB Private 191118


